. Administrative:

1. Is letter of intent needed?  If so, what is the last date for submission? 
No a letter of intent was not requested.

2. The fledgelling corporations aspring to participate in caBIG may not have as many resources and already hired professionals as well established corporations and reserach institutes.  Is it required that persons identified to do the tasks already must be the employees of the applicant organization?  Is it acceptable that a list of identified qualifications is submitted instead of a resume of a specific person? 
The individuals filling the roles of the key people identified in the Solicitation must be employees of the offeror or must have signed letters of intent to become employees if the offeror wins the solicitation.  Resumes of key people must be submitted.

3. Can subcontractor hire consultants?   Are there any constraints on hiring such consultants?  Is it required that they reside in US OR belong to a US based corporation OR a corporation having an office in US? 
The subcontractor may hire consultants. The nature of the work involved in the Knowledge center is such that an understanding of the United States statutes and regulations cited in the solicitation is essential as is a deep understanding of the NCI caBIG program as described in the Solicitation.

4. Are women or minority owned businesses given any preference? 
No, there are no preferences given.

5. For a small corporation, is Small Business Certification required at the time of submission of proposal? 
Assuming the reference is made with regard to the Representations and Certifications FAR clause 52.219-1 Small Business Program Representation; Yes, the certification is required at time of proposal submission.

Price Proposal:

1. Do we enter the exact amount that is awarded to the employee or a consultant working on the project? Can it vary between the amount entered in the proposal and actually awarded?  If there is a surplus amont left overafter paying the employee, can the applicant organziation keep the difference, or need to return to the Contractor?  
Proposal shall reflect the hourly rate plus fringe for each person proposed.  Please refer to the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Part 16 for further specification of Firm Fixed Price awards.  
2. In the number of people identified for the project work, which ones are eligible for executive level1 salary - Director, Operations Manager, rest key personnel? 
I don’t understand the question.  Perhaps the answer is that the solicitation has not designated salary levels.
3. How does the applicant organization get audited?  Do we supply payroll information? 
Audits are conducted in accordance with SAIC-Frederick standard operating procedures.  
4. Can we also cover the cost of accounting from the budget provided? 
Since this is a FFP contract, the winning Offeror will be paid the final, negotiated costs which will include all expenses associated with the work proposed.
5. Is the cost $500,000 allowed as an expense of one year? 
I do not understand this question.  No limits were placed on expenses.  The Offeror should propose costs associated with performing the tasks specified in the Solicitation.
6. Are the cost of insurance and fringe benefits part of the award amount? 
Since this is a FFP contract, the winning Offeror will be paid the final, negotiated costs which will include all expenses associated with the work proposed.
7. If an employee choose not to have insurance, can it be waived by caBIG?
The insurance shall cover the proposing company, not necessarily individuals.   Please refer to Article H.7 in the solicitation for further explanation of Insurance Requirements and Certificates. 
8. Is the maximum price for the proposed work $500,000/year? 
No limits were placed on expenses.  The Offeror should propose costs associated with performing the tasks specified in the Solicitation

Collaborations:

1. We do not have any direct work experience with caBIG but we do have relavent experience that is required for DSIC KC.  Can we collaborate with any workspace facilitator or any caBIG participant with any of the workspaces? Can we collaborate with any of the standing members of Architect workspace?  What are the restrictions or constraints in selecting such an individual? 
The collective experience of the team proposed by the offeror must correspond to the requirements in the Solicitation.  The Offeror is free to propose the team including collaborators that it expects will meet the requirements in the Solicitation.

2. Would the proposal be evaluated based on the partnering organization's experience with caBIG? In other words, can partnering organization's experience be considered as collective caBIG experience? 
The proposal will be evaluated based on all of the criteria presented in the Solicitation including the understanding of caBIG described in the Solicitation. The collective experience of the team proposed by the Offeror must correspond to the requirements in the Solicitation.  The Offeror is free to propose the team including collaborators that it expects will meet the requirements in the Solicitation.

3. Can one have more than one collaborating partner institutes? 
The expectation is that one organization will serve as the Knowledge Center although that Knowledge Center may propose consultants and collaborators to assist in executing the required tasks and responsibilities.
4. In sharing the cost of work load, what is the minimum percentage of workload that a partnering organization must carry?  What is the minimum workload that applicant organization must carry? 
The solicitation does not set percentages on the distribution of workloads.

5. Can operations manager reside at the collaborating institute? 
The Operations Manager is expected to direct the work of the Knowledge Center on a day to day basis and is expected to be in continuous communication directing the core staff and responding to service needs of the caBIG community. The Operations Manager must report to the Center Director in the same organization.  
Technical Aspects:

1. What kind of technical support is required for the customers?  Telephonic, or email?  What are the timings - eastern timings?  Is email reply sufficient for the international support? 
Both telephone and email will be used to support the caBIG community and on occasion, travel may be involved for some activities.  The support is required for all time zones in the United States.
2. Are there any archived materials (such as sample proposals) available that can be useful towards preparing the proposal?  
No, this is the first solicitation for a DSIC Knowledge Center.
3. Preferred length of the proposal? 
No page lengths were specified in the Solicitation. Proposals should be as succinct as possible to address all of the requirements.
4. Does the proposed work involve implementing security related modules or providing the support for how to use the created work under DSIC workspace? 
The security related work is described in Section C.  There is no requirement to implement software modules in this Solicitation.
